

Vroozi Purchase Requester Guide

An employee with the Requester role will have the ability to initiate the procurement process through the creation of a requisition. That requisition once it passes any applicable approval processes will convert into a Purchase Order, a formal document sent to the supplier(s) requesting the listed goods and/or services.

As part of their role, Requesters may also be required to complete a Goods Receipt, resolve exceptions related to their Purchase Orders and document the details of a return.



Table of Contents:

| Procurement Documents 101 | 4 |
|----------------------------------------------------------------|-----------|
| Homepage Anatomy | 5 |
| Navigation Panel | 6 |
| Catalog Shopping | 8 |
| Types of Requisitions | 8 |
| Cart vs. Requisition | 8 |
| Internal Catalogs | 9 |
| Internal Catalog Search Options | 9 |
| Search by specific details or keywords | 9 |
| Search by Category | 9 |
| Create a Requisition from an Internal Catalog(s) | 10 |
| Punchout Catalogs | 12 |
| Create a Punchout Catalog Requisition | 13 |
| Shipping Charges Carry over for cXML Punchout Catalogs | 13 |
| Product or Service Free Text Requisitions | 14 |
| Create a Free Text Requisition | 14 |
| Create a Blanket (Limit) Request | 17 |
| Create an Invoice Plan Request (Only applicable for SAP users) | 18 |
| Modify Request Details | 19 |
| Line Item Functions & Anatomy | 19 |
| Create a Bulk Item Upload Requisition | 21 |
| Track Bulk Upload Progress | 22 |
| View Errors | 22 |
| Catalog Lists | 22 |
| Create a List | 23 |
| Add Line Items to a Request using Lists | 23 |
| List Item Updates | 24 |
| Requisition Creation Tips & Features | 24 |
| Schedule Submission of a PR | 24 |
| Duplicate (Copy) A Line Item | 25 |
| Delete a Line Item | 25 |
| Add Shopping Cart Items to an Existing Draft | 26 |



| Add a Free Text Line Item | 26 |
|------------------------------------------------------|----------|
| Edit Shipping Address | 27 |
| Apply To All Function | 27 |
| Split Account Assignment | 28 |
| Purchase Requests | 29 |
| Duplicate (Copy) a Request | 30 |
| Resubmit a Rejected Request | 31 |
| Approval Status | 32 |
| Purchase Orders | 35 |
| Purchase Order Navigation | 36 |
| Document Navigation | 36 |
| Add Comments to a PO | 36 |
| Purchase Order History | 37 |
| Purchasing Parties | 37 |
| Supplier | 37 |
| View Payment History Notes | 38 38 |
| Related Documents | 38 |
| Responding to a Disputed or Confirmed Purchase Order | 38 |
| What if an item is confirmed? | 38 |
| What if an item is confirmed? | 38 |
| Goods Receipt | 39 |
| Create a Goods Receipt | 39 |
| Create a Goods Receipt for Partial Delivery (1/2) | 41 |
| Create a Subsequent Partial Goods Receipt (2/2) | 42 |
| Service Receipts with 1-click Confirmation | 42 |
| Goods Receipt created from an ASN | 42 |
| Create a Goods Return Against an 'Invoiced' PO | 43 |
| Goods Return | 44 |
| Purchase Order Change Request (POCR) | 46 |
| Invoices | 46 |
| Notification | 46 |
| Submit a Resolution | 47 |
| Closed PO after a Final Invoice | 48 |



| í8 |
|----------------|
| 4 9 |
| 50 |
| 51 |
| - - |



PROCUREMENT DOCUMENTS 101

Purchase Requisition (PR):

- Often referred to as a *Request*
- Initiates the Purchase Process
- Document generated by a user to notify internal stakeholders of items or services needed.

Purchase Order (PO):

- Notifies a supplier of a procurement request
- Document generated against a Purchase Requisition after an approval process.

Goods Receipt (GR):

- Document issued to acknowledge the receipt of the items listed in a Purchase Order
 - Service receipts can be created to confirm the completion of requested services.

Advanced Shipment Notice (ASN):

• Document initiated by suppliers via the Vroozi Supplier portal notifying Requesters of the shipment details for items contained in their PO. (only applicable for buying organizations using the Supplier Portal)

Invoice:

• Initiates payment for goods/services received against a PO.



HOMEPAGE ANATOMY

| VRQ | Categories • | - Q Catalog Search | | | | → 🕒 Lists 🔀 (0) |
|-----|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------|---------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------|
| | | 2 Recently Viewed | | | 4 Recent Requests | 5 6 |
| | | | GRUNDFOS Pump, Circulator, 1/25hp \$149 15 USD | 1000001064 Quarterly Supply Re | \$3,216.34 USD Pending | |
| | | | (115110-00B | 1000001063 Van Service | \$49.99 USD Approved | |
| | | 30 Laser Toner, 1000 | | 1000001062 Toner | | \$192.34 USD Approved |
| | Remanufactured UG5530 Laser Toner, 1000 Vield, Black Standard brake service S49.99 USD | | \$49.99.050 | 1000001061 Requester Training | \$3,216.34 USD Approved | |
| | | | | 1000001060 Dell Supplies | | \$352.80 USD Draft |
| | | | | | View more | |
| | | | Catalog | Suppliers | | |
| * | ACHE | * Bash | * GRAINGER | * Industrial Supply Co. | * Office DEPOT | * |
| | m | m | m | m | Ċ | m |

- **1.** <u>Your Logo</u>: Essentially your "Home" button. From any screen in Vroozi Purchase, , clicking your logo returns you to the homepage.
- 2. <u>Recently Viewed</u>: A history of recently viewed *Internal Catalog* items, click to view the item detail.
- **3.** <u>Search Bar with Categories Menu</u>: Where to search for internal catalog items by keyword(s) or other product identifiers such as SKU, Manufacturing Number, Part Number etc.
 - Allows you to narrow your search to specific categories when searching for *Internal Catalog* items. Used in combination with the *Search Bar*.
- **4.** <u>**Recent Requests**</u>: The 5 most recent requisitions you have submitted. Status' shown to the right of each document number.
- 5. <u>Lists</u>: Create personalized lists of frequently requested items from *Internal Catalogs*. Lists can be saved and applied to future requests.
- 6. <u>Shopping Cart</u>: A "holding area" for catalog items that can be placed into an existing

requisition draft or converted into a new request.

| | | 7 Catalog | Suppliers | | |
|--------------------------------------------------------------|-----|--------------------|-----------------------------------|-----------------|---|
| ACE MART. RESTAURANT SUPPLY Zaming Owned Sizes 1975 | * 🕊 | ARCTIC STAR | ★ €77 PBLC1510M war manuscu ac | 🔶 PrehKeyTec | |
| m | m | m | m | m | |
| | | | | | |
| Criticage Propane | 😭 | ☆ A & A PUMP CO | A C TECHNICAL SERVICES LLC | A GAS AMERICAS | |
| m | m | m | m | m | m |

Requester Guide **5** Updated 5/20/2021



- 7. <u>Catalog Suppliers</u>: A list of all approved catalogs for your organizational group based on regional availability. This may include both *Internal* and *Punchout* suppliers. (shown on previous page)
- 8. <u>Purchase Document Stats</u>: Statistics reflecting the shopper's personal purchasing date.
- 9. Notifications (Bell Icon): View Administrator messages.
- **10.** <u>Help (Book Icon)</u>: Access to 'The Vroozi Success Forum' which includes the self-help knowledge base and the ability to submit a request to the Vroozi Helpdesk.

| | 9 Sta | ts | |
|----------------|---------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------|
| | 7 DAYS 30 DAYS | 90 DAYS LAST YEAR | |
| REQUESTS 16 | total spent \$3,124.12 | catalog compliance 100% | REQUESTS APPROVED |
| | Purchase Doci | uments Stats | |
| DRAFT REQUESTS | PENDING REQUESTS | ORDERS READY TO RECEIVE | |

See Setup Requirements Guide for further navigation details.

NAVIGATION PANEL





<u>Receipts</u>: Where to create *Goods Receipts* and returns.

Invoices: Number badge next to this category indicates your Action is Required to resolve Invoices sent back for completion of a missing Goods Receipt.

Document Flow: Where to look up and view the status and associated records for any type of document. This feature also provides a visual diagram representation of how *Related Documents* are interconnected with each other.



CATALOG SHOPPING

In *Vroozi Purchase*, requesters are able to create both *Catalog* and *Non-Catalog* requisitions.

TYPES OF REQUISITIONS

- **1. Catalog Requests:** include both searchable Internal Catalogs and Punchout Catalogs. Your organization has granted you catalog access based on organizational function and in some cases region.
- **2. Non-Catalog Requests:** pertain to Free Text line items for vendor products or services that are not available in the catalogs.

A single requisition may contain line items from multiple suppliers. In this case, multiple POs will be created from a single request. Any combination of goods and services, as well as Catalog and Non-Catalog line items can also share the same Request Name and Request Number.

CART VS. REQUISITION

The *Cart* and *Request* creation functionalities are two separate but related functions of *Vroozi Purchase*. The following section describes the differences between the two processes.

Cart: The first document created in the purchasing process for *Catalog* purchases. Just like a physical shopping cart, this is a document that holds all of the items you would like to order until you are ready to check out.

- 1. You can add, remove, or edit the quantities of the items you have selected.
- 2. Once you are ready to check out, or submit your request, just click on 'Move to Request' or select an existing request, where you can review it and submit for approval.

Request: Contains all of the information necessary for an order to be submitted and fulfilled by the supplier(s). Prior to submission, you can add, remove, or edit the items you have created or selected. Once the submitted request is approved, it becomes the final document that will be sent for approval and will ultimately be what the *Purchase Order* is based on.



INTERNAL CATALOGS

Internal Catalogs are those that are uploaded by your organization into *Vroozi Purchase*. The search bar allows you to search across multiple vendors. It does not allow you to specifically search across items in one catalog, but you may use the vendor filtering function after you have executed the search.

INTERNAL CATALOG SEARCH OPTIONS

There are several ways to search for items or services. (This searching does not include Punchout catalog inventory.)

Search by specific details or keywords

- 1. Submit basic search
- **2.** Select quick reference options
- 3. Select 'Advanced Search'



Search by Category

- 4. Select from preloaded list of categories
- **5.** View results for suppliers with products or services mapped to that category. You may refine search results from here by selecting specific suppliers, company attributes or searching by keyword. (shown on next page)









Note: The search can be a specific item ID (NON026330) or a keyword, like "gloves" or "Swingline Stapler." This will search across all Internal Catalog vendors for available items.

CREATE A REQUISITION FROM AN INTERNAL CATALOG(S)

- 1. Click 'Add to Cart'. The item will be added to Cart.
- 2. Repeat the search process (steps 1-3) until all desired items are added.
- **3.** Once you have added all of your items, click the *Cart* icon at the top right of the



Requester Guide **10** Updated 5/20/2021



screen. The cart view will display all items in your *Cart*, organized by the vendor.

- **4.** At the cart, you will see all items divided by supplier. From the cart you may still delete items or edit the quantity. Items will remain in your cart for the remainder of your shopping session. Logging out will remove cart items.
 - Your organization may not allow for multiple suppliers in a Requisition or have specific suppliers that cannot be combined in a Requisition.
- **5.** Once you are ready to convert your cart to a requisition you have 2 options; items can either be added to an existing requisition in 'Draft' status (shown above) or created in a new requisition by selecting 'Move to Request'. (also shown above)
 - To add cart items to an existing draft: use the drop-down menu to select from requisitions in draft status.
- **6.** Click 'Move to Request'. You will be redirected to the Create Purchase Request screen.
- 7. The *Request Name* is defaulted to your name plus the *Request Number*—it is optional, but recommended, to rename this request to something more recognizable.

| 00000650 | | | | | | | | | | |
|-------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------|---------------------|--------------|-------------------|--------|-------|------------|-----------------------|---------|--------|
| reation Date | Shipping Address | * | 9 | Supplier | | - 6 | 0 | Approval Group | | 12 |
| an 22, 2019 | Vroozi HQ | | ľ | Office Supply In | nc | | | Click to select value | 2 | · · |
| equest Name 7 | Attention: Nicwhit Vroozi HO | Tester | | Reason for Requ | est 11 | | | | | |
| Requester Tester 1000000650 | 15000 VENTURA 8 | BLVD | | Treason for frequ | | | | | | |
| equester* 8 | SHERMAN OAKS, US | CA 91403-2443 | | | | | | | | |
| Requester Tester | Nichole Whit | aker+OfficeRequeste | r@vroozi.com | | | | | | | |
| | L +1 (818) 555 | | I@HOOL.COM | | | | 11 | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| ustom Field(s) | | | | | | | | | | |
| hipping Address 1 | PR* | | | VIN No | | | | | | |
| | PR | | | vin no | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | 50 | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | // | | 150 | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| PR is a required field. Please specify a value. | | | | | | | | | | |
| PR is a required field. Please specify a value. | | | | 0-1 | Qty | UoM I | Unit Price | Del. Date | Total ⑦ | Action |
| PR is a required field. Please specify a value. Description | | Supplier | Part No. | Category | ųty | 00111 | | | | |

8. Request Name: Defaults to the shopper's name and the Request Number—it is optional, but recommended, to input more specific information about the request, i.e. "monthly office supply order," a project reference, or vendor name(s).



- **9.** Requester: Defaults to the shopper's name. If buying on behalf of someone else, the actual requester's name should be entered. Approvers will be able to see that you have placed the Request on that person's behalf.
- **10.** Shipping Address: Verify details. See the Change Shipping Address section for more information on how to change the address.
- **11.** Supplier(s): Name listed. Field is not editable.
- 12. Reason for Request: Optional Field
- **13.** Approval Group: Select (if applicable)
- 14. Custom Fields: Custom data fields may be set up by the Purchase Administrator(s) and set at either optional or required.
- **15.** Missing Information: Customized message identifying any required information that is missing either in the line item description or the purchase request fields above.
- **16.** Line Item Overview: Review the contents of the request. Catalog-only requests usually have all of the required information defaulted, so typically no additional data needs to be entered by line item.
- **17.** Approval or Supplier Notes: Input any notes for the approver or supplier. This is optional.
- **18.** Delete, Save or Submit the requisition.
- **19.** You will receive a "request submitted" notification at the top of the screen (not pictured). Once approved, you will receive a confirmation email.

PUNCHOUT CATALOGS

Punchout Catalogs, like Internal Catalogs can be used to add items to the cart or request. When using *Punchouts*, you are redirected away from *Vroozi Purchase* to the vendor website to search and select items. The instructions below show how to recognize a *Punchout* catalog, as well as how to use it to add items to the cart and proceed to request submission. Keep in mind that a supplier can be both a *Punchout* as well as an *Internal Catalog* within *Vroozi Purchase*.



CREATE A PUNCHOUT CATALOG REQUISITION

- **1.** From the *Homepage*, locate the *Punchout Catalog* under the *Catalog Supplier* area.
- 2. Look at the supplier to reveal an arrow icon, indicating the catalog is a Punchout catalog. If the supplier <u>only</u> displays a book icon, then it is an *Internal Catalog*.



3. Click on the arrow icon of the *Punchout* catalog supplier. A new window will pop up.

Note: You may need to disable pop-up blockers depending on your browser settings.

- **4.** Search for items in the vendor website and add them to the cart. Each supplier environment is different and will have varying features and functionalities. (not pictured)
- 5. Checkout of the vendor website by clicking the "submit" or "transfer your order"-type button. The exact wording of the function varies by vendor. (not pictured) Your items from the Punchout will be pulled into your Cart in Vroozi Purchase.
- **6.** Once you have returned the items to your Vroozi cart the process to convert the cart to a Requisition will be the same as the steps outlined in the previous section covering internal catalogs.
 - Items returning to your Vroozi cart from a punchout catalog will not include the product/service image.

SHIPPING CHARGES CARRY OVER FOR CXML PUNCHOUT CATALOGS

Shipping charges can be captured from a punchout supplier's catalog allowing shoppers to capture actual spend on Punchout Catalog items.

The shipping charges will be added to the Vroozi shopping cart and then transferred to the Purchase Request and all subsequent related documents thereafter.



| amazon | | | SUPPLIER SUBTOT \$77.93 U |
|--------|----------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------------------------------|
| 8 | NO IMAGE | Spasilk 10 Pack Soft Terry Washcloth, Blu Supplier Part Number: BIOD2.AFFQ4 Manufacturer Number: 010-002 Spasilk 10 Pack Soft Terry Washcloth, Blue | \$6.99 USD x 5.0 = \$34.95 USD |
| | NO IMAGE | The First Years Sure Comfort Deluxe Newborn Supplier Part Number: B00005/TEHT Manufacturer Number: V3155 The First Years Sure Comfort Deluxe Newborn to Tu | * This item has a minimum order quantity of 1 |
| ٢ | NO TRAGE | Skip Hop Moby Bath Tear-Free Waterfall Rinner Bath Cup, Supplier Part Number: BOIFXRSS20 Manufacturer Number: 235103 Skip Hop Moby Bath Tear-Free Waterfall Rinner Bath Cup, Blue | \$19.99 USD x 1 = \$19.99 USD Shipping Charges: \$5.02 USD |
| 2 | NO IMAGE | Spasilk 3 Pack Soft Terry Hooded Towel Set, Blue Suppler Part Runher: B002.AFFP0 Manufacturer Runher: a0 1042 Spasilk 3 Pack Soft Terry Hooded Towel Set, Blue | Shipping Sharges. (0.02 00) |
| | | | = \$7.99 USD Total Items: 8 Subtotal: \$77.93 USD |

Note: This only applies to all <u>cXML punchout catalogs</u> and the shipping charges must be included from the supplier.

PRODUCT OR SERVICE FREE TEXT REQUISITIONS

Create a requisition for items or services that are **not** available in the *Vroozi Purchase* catalogs. Requesters wishing to create a free text requisition should confirm with their supervisor/administrator that the supplier they wish to use has been added to the Vroozi system, as this will be required before the requisition can be completed.

CREATE A FREE TEXT REQUISITION

- **1.** From the Homepage, click 'Free Text under the 'Create'; category in the navigation panel.
- 2. At the requisition draft, the *Request Name* is defaulted to your name plus the *Request Number*—it is optional, but recommended to rename this request to something more recognizable.
- **3.** The *Requester* area defaults to your own name. If you are buying on behalf of someone else, enter their name.



- **4.** Verify the defaulted *Shipping Address*. See the *Change Shipping Address* section for more information on how to change the address.
- 5. Enter the *Reason for Request*. This is optional.
- 6. Scroll down to reveal the *Line Item Overview*.
- 7. Click 'Add Line Item'. The line items details screen will pop up to be completed.
 - Information is divided into 2 tabs; 'General Information' and 'Custom Fields'

 Custom Fields will contain any custom fields required or optional at the requisition level.

8. The *Show Optional Fields* box can be left unchecked. You have the ability to check this box to reveal

additional data such as the line item *Long Text* and *Product ID* fields.

9. Input the required 'General Information'. The exact options may vary based on your organization's protocols and administrative configurations.

| Add Line Item | | | × |
|----------------------|-----------------------------------|----------|---|
| | General Information Custom Fields | | |
| Show Optional Fields | | | |
| 9 туре | Product 🗸 | required | 0 |
| Category | Click to select value | required | |
| Description | | required | |
| Unit Price | \$0.00 | required | 0 |
| Currency | USD - US DollarD 🗸 | required | |
| Quantity | 1 | required | |

Type: The Line Item Type is either a Product, Service, Blanket or Invoice Plan. You may create mixed service and product requests, but Blanket and Invoice Plan line items may not be mixed with any other Type.

<u>Category</u>: This lists all the preset options for your organization. Start typing in the first digit of the *Category* or *Category* description and make the selection using the drop-down menu. Choose the *Category* that best fits what you are ordering.

Description: Type in the description of the product or service being requested.

<u>**Unit/Service Price</u>**: Input the value of the product or service, leaving off special characters like "\$" and commas. Decimal points are OK.</u>

<u>Currency</u>: This area is defaulted but can be updated if your organization's Administrator has configured other *Currency* options for use.



<u>Quantity</u>: The amount of the product or service to be used.

<u>UoM</u>: The unit of measure is defaulted to each (EA) for products, and *Activity Unit* (AU) for *Services*, *Blanket*, and *Invoice Plans*. This drop down can be changed manually if needed.

Recommended Supplier: The supplier you recommend being used—start typing either the *Vendor ID* number or *Vendor Name*. You <u>must</u> make a selection from the drop-down menu, as this area does not accept free text. If you cannot find the supplier you are looking for, contact your company's internal *Vroozi Purchase Administrator* for assistance.

Delivery Date/Service Period: For products, this is defaulted by your organization's *Administrator* for 30 days in the future, which does not need to be changed. For services or *Blanket Requests*, select a *Service Period* using the calendar function. It is OK for the *Date Range* to be an educated guess of when a project or service will be taking place and doesn't have to be perfect.

10. Accounting

Split Account Assignment: Splitting the *Account Assignment* is optional to use when required for the *Request*. Choose how to split your *Account Assignment*—choices include *None*, by *Quantity*, by *Value*, and by *Percent*. If split, the fields will update and require more information based on your selection. See <u>Split Accounting section</u> for further details.

Account Category: This will default to the Cost Object designated by your company's *Administrator*. Your selection will update the following drop-down menu to reflect your choice.

<u>**Cost Object**</u>: This selection automatically populates to your default *Cost Object* but will vary based on your selection of the *Account Category*. The *Cost Object* drop down can be updated by choosing the options on the drop-down menu.

<u>G/L Account</u>: If this is required by your organization, start typing the first few characters of the *General Ledger Account* number or description to reveal a drop-down list provided by your organization. Make the appropriate selection using the drop-down menu. If you don't know what *GL Account* to choose, contact your finance team.

All of your *Company Info* is defaulted for you but can be updated if needed.



- **11.** Select delivery address. (Requester addresses set by administrator)
- **12.** Update the following required tax information (if needed):
 - **Tax Code**: The *Tax Code* will automatically default, but you are able to make changes when necessary.
 - **Tax Value**: No value needs to be entered in this area. If your instance of Vroozi Purchase is integrated with an external ERP system like SAP, the Tax Value will be calculated there.
- **13.** Click 'Save Item'. Your line item will be saved and reflected in the line item overview.
- **14.** Repeat steps 7-13 until you have all the *Free Text Line Items* you need in the request or use the duplicate function. See the *Duplicate Line Item* section for more information.
- **15.** There may or may not be a notification prompting you to add an attachment at the line item or header level. Click 'Add Attachment' and select a saved file off of your computer as supporting documentation. The system accepts most major file formats up to 100MB each.
- **16.** Input any notes for the *Approver* or *Supplier*. This is optional.
- 17. 'Submit '.
- **18.** A blue "request submitted" notification appearing in the bottom left corner of the screen will notify of a successfully submitted request. You will receive an email notification of the Requisition status of approval or rejection.

CREATE A BLANKET (LIMIT) REQUEST

A *Blanket* or "*Limit*" *Request* is a type of *Non-Catalog Free Text* request that consists of items of services that will be delivered over a period of time. Multiple invoices will be submitted by the supplier against the PO. The PO will remain open until the Order Value has been reached. Blanket POs do not require goods receipt.

- 1. From the Homepage, click 'Create' on the blue navigation bar to create a Requsition draft.
- 2. Fill out request details as you would for other requests; Updating defaulted information and fill out incomplete fields. Click 'Add Line Item'. The line item details screen will pop up to be completed.



- **3.** Input the required General Information: Additional details are required for the completion of the Blanket item:
 - Order Value (see image next page)
 - Expected Value: must be equal or less than *Order Value*.
 - Validity Period
- **4.** Click 'Save Item'. Your line item will be saved and reflected in the line item overview.
- 5. There may or may not be a notification prompting you to add an attachment at the line item or header level. Click 'Add Attachment' and select a saved file off of your computer as supporting documentation. The

| Add Line Item The Ord | er Value is the maximum amount to be approved, that includes a buffer above the | | × |
|-----------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------|---|
| | expected value to cover any unforeseen costs. Show Uptional Fields | J | |
| General Information | | | |
| Туре | Blanket + | required | |
| Category | 0R000100 - Building Services - Other | required | |
| Description | Sprinkler service | required | |
| Order Value | \$450.00 | required | |
| Expected Value | \$0.00 | required | |
| Currency | USD \$ | required | |
| Quantity | 1 | required | |
| UoM | \$ | required | |
| Validity Period | 10/08/2019 | required | |
| | 10/08/2019 | | |
| Recommended Supplier | Click to select value | required | |
| Buyer Group | Building Services \$ | | |

system accepts most major file formats up to 100MB each.

- 6. Input any notes for the Approver or Supplier. This is optional.
- 7. Click 'Submit Request'.

Note: Like Invoice Plans, you may only enter a single Blanket Line item per request, so don't try to add more than one!

CREATE AN INVOICE PLAN REQUEST (ONLY APPLICABLE FOR SAP USERS)

An *Invoice Plan* is an automatic scheduled payment of the same amounts where an invoice is then not required. Payment is automatically sent to the supplier.

- Only compatible with SAP integration.
- Only 1 invoice plan can be added to the requisition..
- 1. From the Homepage, click the 'Create' category on the blue navigation bar. The Create a Request page will appear.
- 2. Fill out request details as you would for other requests; Updating defaulted information and fill out incomplete fields. Click 'Add Line Item'. The line items details screen will pop up to be completed.



- **3.** Input the required General Information:
- 4. Click 'Save Item'. Your line item will be saved and reflected in the line item
- **5.** There may or may not be a notification prompting you to add an attachment at the line item or header level. Click 'Add Attachment' and select a saved file off of your computer as supporting documentation. The system accepts most major file formats up to 100MB each.
- 6. Input any notes for the Approver or Supplier. This is optional.
- 7. Click 'Submit Request'.
- **8.** You will receive a "request submitted" notification at the top of the screen (not pictured). Once approved, you will receive a confirmation email.

MODIFY REQUEST DETAILS

LINE ITEM FUNCTIONS & ANATOMY

- **1.** <u>Line Item Checkboxes</u>: Used in correspondence with the Apply to All Function. (see #10 for full description)
- 2. <u>Part Number</u>: Where the Part Number appears for Catalog Items. The Requester is able to manually input the Part Number for Non-Catalog Free Text Request Line Items by clicking into the Line Item Details and updating this information. Part Numbers are required for any Line Item that will be electronically transmitted from Vroozi Purchase to the vendor.

| | 1 | Description | Supplier | Part No. | Category | Qty Uol | Unit Price | Del. Date | Тах | Total 🕐 | Action |
|---|---|----------------------------------------------|---------------------------------|----------|------------|---------|------------|------------|---------|------------|---------|
| ۰ | 1 | GRILL HOT DOG ROLLER GRILL | ACE MART RESTAURANT SUPPLY | 8045SXW | 1218-05-10 | 2 3 EA | \$925.85 | 03/26/2020 | \$0.00 | \$1,851.70 | 4 🖻 🖄 🗞 |
| | 2 | SNEEZE GUARD CANOPY FOR HOT DOG ROLLER GRILL | ACE MART RESTAURANT SUPPLY | 8045W¿C | 1218-07-03 | 1 EA | \$269.64 | 03/12/2020 | \$22.25 | \$269.64 | ê 🗘 🗞 |
| 7 | | Add Line Item B Upload Line Item(s) | Add Attachments 10 Apply to All | | | | | | | | 56 |

- **3.** <u>**Quantity**</u>: Where the Requester can review and update the Line Item Quantity before Request submission.
- 4. <u>Trash Can Icon</u>: Click the Trash Can to delete a specific Line Item.
- 5. <u>Paper Icon</u>: This is the Duplicate Line Item function.



- 6. <u>Paperclip Icon</u>: Use this to add an attachment to a specific Line Item. If adding an attachment for the entire Request, it is recommended to add attachments at the header level. (see #9 for Header Level Attachments)
- 7. Add Line Item: See section on how to add line item.
- 8. <u>Upload Line Items</u>: Requesters can bulk line items by using this function. An item template can be completed instead of searching or creating items manually. See the Item Upload section for more information.
- **9.** <u>Add Attachment (at the Header Level)</u>: The 'Add Attachment' button allows users to attach supporting documentation at the Header Level. This is in contrast to the Paperclip Icon, which uploads attachments by individual line item.
 - Purchase Orders will inherit the attachments associated with the approved Requisition and individual line items within the document. Administrators can control if they want these attachments sent with the PO to the applicable Supplier(s).

| Order Number 2000020913 🖨 | | Order Name 2000020913 | | lssued 11/26/2019 | | |
|-------------------------------------------------------|----------|----------------------------------------------------------|---------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------|---------|
| Request Number 1000027883 | | Order Type Standard | | Buyer Bob Hills | | |
| Supplier Office Depot Vendor Id Office Depot | | Payment Terms Company Code DemoComapny123 - elever | 12 | Corporate 2407 BRQAD ST CAMDEN, SC 29020-2342 United States of America ST Tester@vroozi.com | | |
| | | | | € +1 (310) 899-9444 | | |
| | Category | Part No. | Delivery Date | Qty UoM | Unit Price | Total (|
| # Description | | | | | | |

10. <u>Apply to All</u>: Requesters have the ability to apply Line Item Details from one item to other items within the same Request. This includes Accounting and Tax information. See <u>'Apply to All'</u> section for further details.

CREATE A BULK ITEM UPLOAD

REQUISITION

Vroozi Purchase allows Requesters to create requisitions using the Bulk Item Upload feature directly from the 'Create' category. This is particularly useful when there is a



Request with several dozens of Line Items, as it is an alternative to creating or searching for Line Items one at a time.

- 1. Start the process by downloading the Excel<u>Bulk Item Upload Template</u> in the Vroozi HelpDesk.
 - Examples of *Line Items* are available on the template, however, make sure to delete these out when preparing your template.

| x | Line Item Upload Template - Excel ? 🗷 🗕 | | | | | | | | | | × |
|---|-----------------------------------------|-------------|------------------|------------------|----------|-----|-------|-------------|-------------|----------------|-------|
| F | ILE HOME | INSERT | PAGE LAYOUT | FORMULAS DATA | REVIE | W V | IEW | | | Sig | ın in |
| A | L 👻 | : 🗙 | ✓ ƒx item_nu | imber | | | | | | | ¥ |
| | Α | В | С | D | E | F | G | н | Ι | J | |
| 1 | item_number | item_type | item_description | product_category | quantity | uom | price | cost_center | wbs_element | internal_order | |
| 2 | 1 | product | Test item #1 | | | BAG | 12 | A0A609122 | | | |
| 3 | 2 | service | Test item #2 | FA000006 | 5 | EA | 45.67 | | AA-12-DEWE | | |
| 4 | 3 | blanket | Test item #3 | FA000006 | 5 | EA | 34.56 | | | 0000 | |
| 5 | 4 | invoiceplan | Test item #4 | FA0000006 | 5 | EA | 2.34 | A0A609122 | | | |

- **2.** Fill out the template information into the spreadsheet and save it to your computer.
- **3.** Once completed, log into *Vroozi Purchase*.
- 4. Click 'Create' from the blue navigation bar. (not pictured)
- **5.** Review and update the *Purchase Request* information at the top, like *Request Name* and *Shipping Address* if needed.
- 6. Click 'Upload Line Item(s)'.
- 7. Follow your computer's prompts to select the *Line Item* template that you completed beforehand. Your *Line Items* will automatically be uploaded.
- **8.** If there is any required information that is missing, the system will provide notifications in **red** of what needs attention. These messages vary. Once the items listed are addressed, continue to step #10.
- 9. Review your uploaded line items for accuracy.
- **10.** Add any *Approver* or *Supplier Notes*. This is optional.
- **11.** Click 'Submit'.

TRACK BULK UPLOAD PROGRESS

Line item bulk upload files can be uploaded to a PR via the Bulk Upload function or via the standard Create/Edit Purchase Request screen. In either case, the file is



processed synchronously, in the background. Allowing the user to continue utilizing the application regardless of the size of the file being uploaded.

Users will see a new file progress tracker that remains visible to the user no matter which



screen they are on, allowing them to monitor the progress of any number of files processing.

The newly updated PR can also be uploaded PR from the tracker. Users will be able

to access the newly created or updated PRs from this tracker, as well as any PDF error reports generated by any of their uploaded files.

View Errors

If errors occur in the upload, users can click the error message in the tracker to view the PDF error report generated by the system.

| Purchase Request Error | | | | | | | |
|------------------------|----------------------------------------|-------------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| | Upload Error Log | 04-03-2019 01:35 PM PST | | | | | |
| Record No. | Remarks | | | | | | |
| 1. | Line Item 1 Cost Center is invalid | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | · · · · | | | | | | |
| Please reuploa | ad the file after fixing these issues. | | | | | | |

CATALOG LISTS

Catalog Lists are an optional function in Vroozi Purchase that help make it fast and easy to add frequently ordered Internal Catalog items to a request. If you add the same items to the request on a regular basis, you may want to take the time to create your List and utilize this feature. This chapter describes how to create an Internal Catalog List, and how to use them to create requisitions.

CREATE A LIST

 From the *Homepage*, click 'Lists' to reveal a drop down of previously created lists. (Example below shows a 'Favorites' list) or 'new list' options.



- 2. Click 'new list'. The new list that you created has a default name of My List.
- **3.** You can change the name of your list by simply clicking *My List* text area and typing in the name of your new *List*. (i.e. Office Supplies, Weekly Snack Order, Phone Accessories)
- 4. Click the blue 'Get started here!' link to add items to your list.



- 5. Search for the item you would like to add to the list using the Search Bar.
- **6.** Click the yellow star icon next to the item description to reveal a drop-down menu.

| | ADHESIVE, ACRYL | IC, BOTTLE, 50ML; Adhesive Type: |
|-----------------------------------------|----------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| AND | New List | cd1ff5d731cce2a6e3 |
| | Favorites | |
| | Method:Bottle; Volum | 3OTTLE, 50ML; Adhesive Type:Acrylic; Chemical Color:Red; Dispensing ne:50ml; Adhesive Applications:Thread Locking; Chemical |
| | Solution:Dimethacryl | ate Ether; Colo |

- **7.** Select the name of the *List* you would like to add it to. The item will be added to your *List*.
- 8. Repeat steps 6-8 to add more items to the List.

ADD LINE ITEMS TO A REQUEST USING LISTS

If you have not created your list yet, refer to the Create a Catalog List section first.

- 1. From the *Homepage*, click 'Lists' to reveal a drop down of options.
- 2. Click on the *Name* of the *List* you would like to select items or services from.
- **3.** Your *List* will be displayed. Here, you have the opportunity to remove or change the item quantities before moving them into a *Request*.
- **4.** After making the necessary amendments, review your subtotal and select whether you would like to *Create a New Request*, or add the items to an existing *Draft Request* using the drop-down menu.
- 5. Click 'Move to Request'.

LIST ITEM UPDATES

If an item in a Requester's List is updated (via administrator or supplier user update) that item will be highlighted in the favorites list with a message notifying of the update. If the item still exists in the catalog, then the requester must go to the item listing and re-add.

| The highlight | hted iterr(s) has been updated. Please remove it or add it again. | | |
|-----------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| My List | | | |
| Delete fat | ect all | | Sha |
| | | | SUPPLIER SUBTO |
| | NO HANGE | Change Report Nov 20 Sten 01 Segular Park Marcel: 333 Menderate Network: 131124 VAUE EALX, 2018,005,04.075 STL BOOVENDSVALVE BALLCONNECTION SIZE 2'VALVE CODE: B326600' MATTERA | \$30.00 USD x 1 = \$30.00 USD Cotification * This item has a minimum order quantity of 1 and cas only be indered in quantities of 1. |
| | | Charge Report Nov 20 tests (5) Segler Part Made (13) Manalasan Marak (13) Manalasan Marak (13) Marakasan Sangar (13) Marakasan Sangar (13) Marakasan (13) Ma | %Red/s Configurat €70,00 EUR xi 2 • €140,00 EUR Configurat Iom *This item has a minimum core quartified of 24 and and only be ordered in quartified of 24 |
| | | | Weeds Configurat Total Items: 3 Subtotal: ~170.00 MIXED |

Requester Guide **23** Updated 5/20/2021



REQUISITION CREATION TIPS & FEATURES

SCHEDULE SUBMISSION OF A PR

If enabled at the administrative level, employees will have the ability to schedule the automatic submission of their Purchase Requests at a date & time in the future. This schedule can be defined for a PR from either bulk upload creation screen or the standard Create/Edit Purchase Request screen.

- **1.** Set Date, Time and Time Zone.
 - Date: Schedule 24 hours to 1 year in advance.
 - Time: Set specific hour and minutes
 - Time Zone: All time zones available
- 2. Select 'Confirm Schedule'
- **3.** A notification will appear confirming the PR has been successfully scheduled.



4. Based on a defined schedule of a PR, the system will automatically process and submit the PR in the background at the correct time. The requester will receive an email confirmation that the PR has been created & submitted.

Note: If a user does not wish to schedule PR submission they can simply select 'Submit' at the PR creation page to immediately submit.

DUPLICATE (COPY) A LINE ITEM

This section describes how to use the duplicate function as an alternative to 'Add Line Item' when adding line items to a request. The copy functionality is applicable for both *Free Text, Non-Catalog* and *Catalog Line Items*. If you would like to start from the request process from the Homepage, refer to additional sections of the *Create a Request* chapter.

1. From the *Create a Request* screen, find the line item you would like to duplicate, and click the copy (paper) icon on the right. Your line item will be duplicated.

| 12:54 PM | | | | |
|-----------|------------|------------|----------|-----|
| Time Zone | | | | |
| (GMT -7: | 00) Mounta | in Time (l | JS & Can | ac∨ |



- **2.** To update the information like *Description*, *Accounting*, and *Quantity*, click on the linked *Description* of the line item.
- **3.** The *Line Item Detail* screen will open up. Make the necessary changes to the *Line Item*. (not pictured)
- **4.** Click 'Save Item'. (not pictured) Your updates will reflect in the *Line Item Overview* like the example below.

DELETE A LINE ITEM

In the *Line Item Overview* area, you have the ability to remove items from the purchase request. This section addresses how to delete a line item from the *Create Purchase Request* screen, after line items have already been selected or created. If

you would like to start the request process from the Homepage, refer to prior sections of the *Create a Request* chapter.

- 1. Identify the item that you would like to delete.
- **2.** Click the trash can icon. The item will be removed from your *Request*.
- **3.** A pop up will appear asking if you are sure you would like to delete the item. Click the 'Yes, Remove Line Item!' to accept. The item will be removed.



ADD SHOPPING CART ITEMS TO AN EXISTING DRAFT

From your shopping cart you have the ability to add line items to the *Purchase Request* after other line items have already been selected. If you would like to start a new *Request* from the *Homepage*, refer to other *Create a Request* sections available.

- **1.** From the *Create Purchase Request* screen, enter your search term, and click the magnifying glass icon to execute the search.
- **2.** Locate the item and amend the *Quantity* if needed.
- **3.** Click 'Add to Cart'.
- **4.** Continue searching for and adding items to the *Cart* until you have everything you need from the *Internal Catalogs*. (not pictured)
- 5. Click the Cart icon.
- 6. Review the contents of your *Cart*.
- **7.** Use the drop-down menu to find the request you would like to add the items to.



| | | | WEBSITE URL : http: CONTACT : Chaz |
|------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------|
| | Keurig K425 Coffee Maker | | \$139.99 USD x 1 = \$139.99 USD |
| | ✓ CREATE NEW REQUEST Monitors - HR Team Workstation set up Printer supplies | Te thnology The Keurig K475 | Configure Item * This item has a minimum order quantity of 1 |
| | Breakroom Requester Training 1000001730 | | WEBSITE URL : http: CONTACT : Chaz |
| | Requester Training 1000001730 Requester Training 1000001730 Requester Training 1000001716 Requester Training 1000001635 Requester Training 1000001629 | | \$299.99 USD x 1 = \$299.99 USD |
| | Requester Training 1000001625 Requester Training 1000001603 Requester Training 1000001562 | t to your office Boost the | Configure Item * This item has a minimum order quantity of 1 |
| | Office Supplies New Laptop Employee #86 | | WEBSITE URL : http:/// CONTACT : Chaz |
| | Requester Training 1000001171 Requester Training 1000001165 Requester Training 1000001164 Laptop Snow Blowers Quarterly Supply Replenishing | | Total Items: 13 Subtotal: \$2,538.88 USD |
| Clear Cart | CREATE NEW REQUEST | × | Move to Request |
| | | | |

- 8. Click 'Move to Request'. The line items will be added to your request.
- **9.** Continue with the submission of your request (not pictured). For more detailed instructions of how to do this, refer to additional *Create a Request* sections.

ADD A FREE TEXT LINE ITEM

While in the Create Purchase Request screen, you have the ability to add Line Items to an existing Purchase Request. If you would like to start a new Free Text Request from the Homepage, refer to the various Create a Free Text Request sections available.

 From the Purchase Requisition draft, select 'Add Line Item'. The Line Item Details screen will pop up to be completed. See the <u>Free Text</u> <u>Requisition</u> section for further details on completion of each field.

| # | Description | Description | | | | | | | | |
|-----|-------------------|-----------------|--------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| 1 | Dell Precision M4 | | | | | | | | | |
| Add | Line Item | Add Attachments | Apply to All | | | | | | | |

2. The 'Show Optional Fields' box can be left unchecked. You have the ability to check this box to reveal additional data such as the line item *Long Text* and *Product ID* fields depending on your organization's specific *Vroozi Purchase* configurations.

EDIT SHIPPING ADDRESS

Global permission allowing Requesters to edit 'Shipping Address' is set by your Vroozi Administrator. The features defined in this section only apply to organizations with address editing enabled.

The Shipping Address for all Requests is defaulted based on your set Profile Information. However, this information can be updated on a request by request basis.

| Purchase Request 1000001805 | | | | |
|--------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------|----------|------------|
| Appent Naci | Physical Advance* Instant Control Tomory Instant Contrest | Lagelar Others Raphy ene Raseds for Report | | |
| P Description | Supplier | Part No. | Category | Del. Date |
| D 1 Del Precision M4000 Mebile Workstation | Office Supply Inc | 2533520 | 48100000 | 06/22/2020 |
| Add Line Item Add Attachments Apply 10 Al | | | | |



- 1. From the Create Purchase Request screen, click the 'Pencil Edit' icon next to the shipping address. The Edit Address window will pop up prompting you to fill out new address information.
- **2.** Fill out all required fields.
- **3.** Once the address has been updated, slide the Update Address function from "off" to "on".
- **4.** Click 'Save Address'.
- **5.** You will be returned to the *Create Purchase Request* screen with your new address information populated on the *Request*. (not pictured)

APPLY TO ALL FUNCTION

Edit accounting information for more than one line item at a time by following the steps outlined below.

- 1. Select the Line Items you would like to update with the same information by checking the boxes next to them.
- 2. Click the box in the line item description header or once one item is selected click 'Apply to All' to apply any changes to all items.



3. Fill out the appropriate information. Not all of the options need to be selected in order to proceed to the next step.

| | | | × |
|--------------------------|------------------------|----------------|----------|
| APPL | Y TO | MANAGE PRESETS | |
| Select Account Preset | None | | |
| Split Account Assignment | None | ~ | |
| Company Code | Vroozi Inc Vroozi Inc. | | |
| Account Category | | ~ | required |
| G/L Account | Click to select value | | required |
| Currency | USD | ~ | |
| Plant | Vroozi Inc Vroozi Inc. | | required |
| Tax Code | | ~ | |

4. Click 'Apply Changes'. You will be returned to the Line Item Overview and your Line Items will be updated.

Note: Depending on the vendor and item, you may need to enter additional required information for each Line Item before you are able to submit your Request above and beyond what was selected while using Apply All. Vroozi



Purchase will provide a message if any minimum information requirements have not been met.

SPLIT ACCOUNT ASSIGNMENT

Use split accounting to share the cost of an item among multiple accounting groups. For Requesters with the permission to edit line items (assigned by your administrator), the ability to split the accounting will be available.

- **1.** From the *Purchase Request* draft, locate the item you would like to update and click on the linked item *Description*.
- **2.** Scroll down to the *Accounting* section.
- **3.** Choose how to split the Account Assignment—by Quantity, by Value or by *Percent*.

| Accounting | | |
|--------------------------|---------------------------------------|------------------|
| Split Account Assignment | √ None | × |
| Account Category | By Quantity By Value By Percent | j |
| GL Account | Click to select value | |
| | | |
| | | Cancel Save Item |

4. Choose an Account Category (i.e. Cost Center) from the drop-down menu. The Cost Object options will automatically update based on your selection. (Image below shows the Split Account

assignment by Quantity.)5. Choose the corresponding Cost

- Object. 6. Enter your Quantity, Value or Percent for the first part of your Accounting Split.
- **7.** Input the split information for the second *Account Category*.
- 8. If more than two splits are needed, click the + button and continue filling out the relevant information for each until completed.

| Accounting | |
|--------------------------|-----------------------|
| Split Account Assignment | By Quantity ~ |
| Account Category #1 | Cost Center ~ |
| 5 Cost Center #1 | 10 - Executive |
| 6 Quantity #1 | |
| GL Account #1 | Click to select value |
| Account Category #2 | ~ |
| Quantity #2 | |
| GL Account #2 | Click to select value |
| | 8 🕀 |

9. Scroll down and click the *Save* button to update the *Line Item*. (not pictured)



PURCHASE REQUESTS

A Requester is able to view any Request they have created by navigating to the Purchase Requests category in the Navigation Panel. Here Requests are organized into 4 categories; Drafts, Pending, Approved and Attention (rejected) Requests.

Click on the desired status column to display a historical list of *Requisitions*. (The Pending tab has been selected in the image below.)

| <table-cell> Requester 🗸 🗸</table-cell> | Categories - | Catalog Search | | | | | | | Ì → | 🗎 Lists | 员(0) |
|-----------------------------------------|--------------|----------------|-------------------|------------|----------------------|--|----|----------------|--------------|-----------------|---------|
| 🗭 Create Request | | | | | Request Pending R | | | | | | |
| Free Text | | Draft | Pending | Approved | Attention | | | | | | |
| 🕒 Request Status | | | | | | | | | | | |
| PO Status | Request # | Submitted | Supplier | Request N | Request Name | | | pprover | Total Amount | Status | Actions |
| 💷 Shipping Notices | 1000001658 | 04/06/2020 | Office Supply Inc | Requester | Training 2000001189 | | A | pprover One | \$6,271.56 | Pending | 84 |
| Receipt Status | 1000001568 | 02/06/2020 | Office Supply Inc | Laptops fo | or support team | | A | pprover One | \$1,513.08 | Pending | 84 |
| Resolve Involces | 1000001557 | 01/21/2020 | Office Supply Inc | Computer | for Mike D. | | A | pprover One | \$599.00 | Pending | 84 |
| A Document Flow | 1000001551 | 01/13/2020 | Grainger | Snow Blov | ver | | A; | pprover One | \$1,963.00 | Pending | 84 |
| | 1000001511 | 12/18/2019 | Alpha | Shay Ilahi | Quiz 5 | | A | pprover One | \$1,000.00 | Pending | 84 |
| | 1000001493 | 12/14/2019 | Office Supply Inc | Kishor Gir | | | м | ir. T Sourcing | \$978.99 | Sourcing Review |) 8Q) |

To view the details or initiate an action on a PO, click the linked 'Request Number'

DUPLICATE (COPY) A REQUEST

Once a *Request* has been approved, you have the ability to duplicate, or "copy" this request and submit it as a new *Request* for approval. This function is time-saving for large recurring orders because you do not have to search for the line items again. Once copied, you are able to add or delete *Line Items* to tailor the request to your needs at that time.

Pending and approved Requests with line items from internal catalogs may be copied, and the system will validate the pricing before submission. However, Punchout catalog line items cannot be copied because the price checking function is not available for external websites.

For more detailed information about how to complete purchase requests after the duplication process, see previous Create' sections.

- 1. First, you must locate the approved request to duplicate. From the Homepage, select 'Purchase Requests' from the navigation panel.
- 2. From this page, you are able to view your requests by status. Click on 'Approved' or 'Pending' requests.
- 3. Locate the request

| | Create Request | | | | | | |
|-----|-----------------------|------------|------------|-------------------|--------------------------------------------|-----------------|---------------------------|
| | C Request Status | | | 2 Draft | Pending Approved | Attention | |
| | PO Status | | | | | | 3 |
| + I | Real Shipment Notices | Request # | Approved | Supplier | Request Name | Approver | Total Amount Actions |
| ۲ | Receipt Status | 100000629 | 01/10/2019 | Office Supply Inc | TONER - Mkting | Approver Vroozi | \$219.76 |
| | ① Resolve Invoices | 100000519 | 12/18/2018 | Office Supply Inc | Whitaker-Certification | | \$246.74 |
| | A Document Flow | 100000518 | 12/17/2018 | Office Supply Inc | Toner-Business Office Kenny-Maintenance | | \$242.40 C2 \$85.44 C2 |
| | | 1000000517 | 12/13/2018 | once supply inc | Kenny-Maintenance | | \$85.44 🛃 |



you would like to copy and click the 'Duplicate Request' icon (stacked papers on the right side) to begin the process. You may preview this request beforehand by clicking into the linked 'Request Number'.

4. Alternatively you may copy a requisition from the requisition view by clicking Copy. (shown below)

| ubmission Date 1/14/2020 | Shipping Address Attention: Niowhit Tester | Supplier Office Depo | e | | Ap | proval Group | | | |
|--------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------|----------|----------|------------|--------------|------------------------|------------|------------|
| equest Name | Vioozi HQ 15000 VENTURA BLVD SHERMAN DAKS, CA 91403/2443 | Purchase 0 | | | | | | | |
| Aonitors - HR Team | US | 200000116 | | | | | | | |
| Vichelle Requester | ℃ +1 (818) 555-5555 | - | | | | | | | |
| Description | | Supplier | Part No. | Category | Del. Date | Qty | UoM | Unit Price | Total 💿 |
| Dell(TM) 27 Full HD LED Monitor, Thin Bezel, Space-Saving Base, SE | 5771 9H | Office Depot | 8140985 | 43211902 | 01/18/2020 | 5 | EA | \$249.99 | \$1,249.91 |
| | | | | | | | | | \$1,249.95 |
| | | | | | | | Subtotal (USD) | | \$1,249.95 |
| | | | | | | | Shipping Charges (USD) | | \$0.00 |
| | | | | | | | Tax (USD) | | |
| | | | | | | | Total (USD) | | \$1,249.95 |

- **5.** A new requisition with a new unique document number will be created with the same items and Accounting and Tax information as defined in the original request. (not pictured)
- 6. Verify the correctness of the new *Purchase Request* and update the information if needed.
- 7. You are able to customize your newly copied *Request* using the available functions within the request like adding or removing line items, updating quantities, adding attachments, and updating the accounting sections. See the *Create a Request* sections for more details.
- **8.** Once the data and notes for the copied request are updated and verified, *save*' the request or 'Submit' for approval. (not pictured)

RESUBMIT A REJECTED REQUEST

At the administrative level, your organization may configure the Vroozi system to allow Requesters the ability to directly edit and resubmit a Requisition that has been rejected. If your organization does not allow for resubmittance of requisitions, see the

<u>Copy (Duplicate)</u>

Request section as an alternative method of





re-submitting a *Request* for approval.

When a *Request* is rejected, you will be notified via email. The *Request* will be in the *Attention* status tab for you to review and take action to edit and submit it again to your approver(s).

- 1. Click the Attention (rejected) Requests.
- 2. To drill down into Request Details, click the linked Request Number.
- **3.** Review the *Notes from Approver* to see why the *Request* was rejected and if it needs to be amended and re-submitted for approval.

Note: If there aren't any new notes or attachments from the approver, it is recommended that you email or call the approver who rejected your Request to find out the reason for rejection.

- **4.** Make any necessary changes to the *Request*. This could be a *Quantity* change, adding or removing *Line Items*, or attaching relevant documents for example.
- **5.** Add any *Notes for the Approver* if needed by clicking 'Add Note'. Enter any comments and click the green 'Save Note'. (not pictured)
- 6. Scroll down to the bottom and click 'Submit Request'. (not pictured) The *Request* will now be classified as *Pending* if it is above the auto-approval threshold. You will receive an email notification once it has been approved (or rejected again).

APPROVAL STATUS

Based on configurations defined by your administrator. Based on each individual's spend threshold, requisitions after submission may go through a series of approvals.

Before or after submitting a requisition you can view the approval workflow by clicking 'Approval Status'

| urchase Request 10 | 000005224 | | Draft |
|------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------|----------------------------|-----------------|
| Request Name * | Shipping Address * | Supplier | Approvals |
| Partner Requester 1000005224 | 00024-Austin 27 | ACE MART RESTAURANT SUPPLY | Approval Status |
| Requester * | Attention: Partner Requester | Reason for Request | |
| Partner Requester | 11521 N FM 620 RD STE A AUSTIN, TX 78726-1168 | | |
| | US | | |
| | nichole.whitaker+partner@vroo | | |
| | \$ +1 (210) 938-1024 | 4 | |



(shown on right) on the Requisition.

Once clicked all approvers will be revealed. (shown below) If approval review has

been completed by any listed approvers, the date and time of their response will be notated.

Once your Requisition has completed any applicable approval workflow, an email notification will confirm approval.

| Your Purchase Request 1000000153 has been appro | | | | | | |
|---------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------|--------------------------------------------------------|----------|----------------------------------------|--|--|
| Date Submitted | | Order Num 2000-0024-07 | ber | | | |
| Approver | Notes for Requester | | | | | |
| Frank Vroozi nichole.whitaker+frank@ - | vroozi.com | N/A | | | | |
| Frank Vroozi nichole.whitaker+frank@ - Ordered Items | | | 071 | Showing 1 of | | |
| Frank Vroozi nichole.whitaker+frank@ - | SUPPLIER Dell | N/A GL CODE 259876 - Busines s Administration | QTY 2 | Showing 1 of UNIT PRICE \$899.00 | | |



Similarly rejected Requisitions will trigger an email notification. The email notification will include who rejected the requisition and if available will include the rejection notes provided by the Approver.

| Nichole Vroozi has rejec | ted your P | urchase Re | quest 1 | 000000972 |
|------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------|-----------|--------------|
| Rejected Date | | Supplier Grainger | | |
| Approver Nichole Vroozi nichole.whitaker+approver@yro - | li pozi.com n | Notes from tem #2 is no lor emove. View complete t | nger need | |
| 09/24/2019 | 4 | \$ | 2,95 | 59.11 |
| Rejected Date | ITEM | S | тот | AL |
| Ordered Items | | | | Showing 4 of |
| DESCRIPTION | SUPPLIER | GL CODE | QTY | UNIT PRICE |
| INTERMATIC Timer, 24 Hour, Dpst | Grainger | N/A | 10 | \$80.15 |
| LITTLE GIANT Pump, Magnetic | Grainger | N/A | 5 | \$355.75 |
| APPLETON ELECTRIC Gasket, | Grainger | N/A | 3 | \$12.42 |
| INTERMATIC Timer, 24 Hour, Dpst | Grainger | N/A | 4 | \$80.15 |
| | т | OTAL | | \$2,959.1 |
| | | | | |





PURCHASE ORDERS

A *Requester* is able to view all their *Purchase Order* by navigating to the Purchase Orders category. Here, POs are able to be searched, filtered and viewed.

- **1.** Select 'Purchase Orders' in the navigation panel.
- 2. From here you will be able to view the repository of all your *POs*. Use the Search bar to search by Accounting elements, Request Name, Status, Supplier, etc. (shown on right)
- **3.** Click any of the arrows to organize by PO Number, PO Creation Date, Supplier, Request Number or 'Purchase Orders' by ascending or descending order. POs are automatically organized from oldest to newest.

| 😋 Requester 🗸 🗸 | Categories - Q Catalog Sea | |
|--------------------|--------------------------------------------------|--------------------|
| 📝 Create Request | | |
| Free Text | | |
| E Request Status | Q Search by PO #, Requester and Supplier Name | |
| PO Status | T Narrow search by Company Code | PO Creation Date 🧅 |
| Shipping Notices | Plant Code 01 248 Ship to Address | 06/16/2020 |
| Receipt Status | Supplier 01242 | 05/22/2020 |
| ① Resolve Invoices | Request Name 0 ¹ 241 Status 01240 | 05/22/2020 |
| Locument Flow | PO Amount PO Creation Date 0 ¹ 229 | 05/06/2020 |
| | PO Payment Date 0" 228 | 04/23/2020 |
| | Transaction # | 04/23/2020 |

- **4.** To drill down into PO Details, click the linked PO Number for more information.
- **5.** The corresponding *Purchasing Parties, Supplier, Payment, Communications,* and *Related Document* data can be viewed by clicking the icons on the right side of the page.
- 6. There is also an option to *Print* or save it as a print-friendly document.
- 7. If the *PO* has been *Ordered*, a *Goods Receipt* can be created directly from this page by clicking on the circular blue icon docked on the bottom right of the page.



PURCHASE ORDER NAVIGATION

- 1. Click the print icon to print the PO or save as a PDF
- **2.** Basic Buyer and Supplier details shown.
- **3.** Quick reference status icon.
- 4. Navigation icons to add comments, view PO history, supplier and payment details, record notes and view related documents. (more on

| Purchase Order | | | | | | 3 | Ordered |
|----------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------|----------|----------|---------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------------|----------|
| Order Number 2000000287 🖨 1 | Order Name 2000000287 | | | | Issued 01/10/2019 | | |
| Request Number 2 1000000629 | Order Type Standard | | | | Buyer Requester Tester | | 4 |
| Supplier Office Supply Inc | Payment Terms Net 1 Day | | | | Attention: Nicwhit Tester Vroozi HQ 15000 VENTURA BLVD SHERMAN OAKS, CA 91403-24 | 43 | |
| Vendor ID 247T001 | Company Code 543213 - Marketing | | | | US | quester@vroozi.com | |
| | | | | | C +1 (818) 555-5555 | | |
| 5 Description | | Category | Part No. | Delivery Date | Qty Uoli | M Unit Price | Total |
| Insertable Big Tab Plastic Dividers w/Single Pockets, 5-Tab, 11 1/8 x 9 1/ | 4 | 44122010 | AVE11902 | 01/15/2019 | 6 SET | \$2.96 | \$17.76 |
| 2 Remanufactured 1559A002AA (FX6) Toner, 5000 Yield, Black | | 44103103 | IVRFX6 | 01/15/2019 | 5 EA | \$40.40 | \$202.00 |
| | | | | | | Subtotal (USD) | \$219.76 |
| | | | | | | Shipping Charges (USD) | \$0.00 |
| | | | | | | Tax (USD) | \$0.00 |
| | | | | | | Total (USD) | \$219.76 |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | 6 |
| | | | | | | | |

comments in next section)

- 5. Line Items. Click the description to view specific details.
- 6. Create a PO Change Request (as defined by your administrator)

DOCUMENT NAVIGATION

The Document Navigation bar is available within any submitted Requisition through to Invoice.

Here you can access the history of the document. Which includes various communication channels and history through different looks.



Add Comments to a PO

An optional 'Comment' icon can be accessed at the top of the navigation icons on the right side of a PO or Invoice, allowing any user with access to the document to communicate internally with other users in the application.

• Comments field expands to view or 'Add comments


| | COMMENTS | × |
|---|-----------------|---|
| | No comments yet | |
| Q | | |
| 0 | Add comment | |
| | | |

• Comments will be viewable by all users with access to the document. To specifically notify a user(s), type @ to retrieve a list of users to tag in the comment.

| | COMMENTS | | COMMENTS | Tag buyers or other portal system users |
|---|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---|-------------------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------|
| | Huges Solanos Now Gale SL Shahid Lala madu Ausuman-Hydrifiginnosi.com SA Sourchoff-mancial Approve hubble halves conformed and approve | | Hugo Solano Now @Hugo_Solano Thank you for your order | |
| 0 | hm husnain mustafa admin husnain mustafa@vroczi.com | | | |
| | uf umair financial Approver1 umair jafar+financialapprover1@vroozi.com | | | |
| , | umair financial Approver2 umair glafar financial Approver2@vroozi.com umair financial Approver2@vroozi.com umair financial Approver2@vroozi.com | e | Cancel | Save |

• Any user(s) tagged will receive an email notification of a 'Comment' (See below)

| Forwarded message From: dewandef/360mail.com> Date: Wed, Jan 16, 2019 at 12:56 PM Subject Hugo Solano has sent you a message ab To: <hr/> Tugo.solano=test/(gvrooz.com> | Soul Purchase Order 2000003175 |
|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| | Hugo Solano has sent you a message about Purchase Order 2000003175 Click to View or take action Hugo Solano Thank you for your order RESPOND IN VROOZI |

Purchase Order History

View the history of the document including user names, action taken with date & time stamps.

Purchasing Parties

View Requester, Buyer, Company Code and Supplier details.

Supplier

Access Supplier contact information





View Payment History

View invoice history (if it exists)

Notes

View history of Notes that have been added to each transactional document in the flow. This may include notes from requester, buyer, (approvers), AP team members & the supplier.

Related Documents

View Purchase Requests, Shipment notice, Invoices, Receipts & Returns. Click the hyperlinked document number to access the referenced document directly. (shown on right)

Note: Any fields without data can be selected but will appear in a light gray color. Example on previous page shows a PO that has not yet been paid therefore the Payment Icon appears in a lighter color. (shown below)

RESPONDING TO A DISPUTED OR CONFIRMED PURCHASE ORDER

Based on the communication standards set by each supplier, you may receive PO status updates from a supplier that includes confirmation or dispute of each line item.

What if an item is confirmed?

This means that the supplier has accepted the quantity, price and delivery date of the item as listed in the PO.

What if an item is confirmed?

Based on the type of PO Change Request permissions available, you may choose to remove the Disputed PO

item(s) and add a replacement item.

| | Description | Category | Part No. | Delivery Date | Qty UoM | Unit Price | Tax | Total 💿 Status |
|----------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------|----------|---------------|---------|------------|--------|------------------|
| 1 | A | 53000000 | | 01/31/2021 | 10 EA | \$2.00 | \$1.45 | \$20.00 Ordered |
| 2 | в | 53000000 | | 01/31/2021 | 12 EA | 62:00 | \$1.74 | \$24.00 Disputed |
| Suppl Suppl | on for Dispute : Price Rectification lier's new recommended price : \$2 lier's new recommended Delivery D ional Dispute Information : REJECI | 10 USD ate : 02/01,22021 | | | | | | 1 |

If the item has been disputed based on the

delay in shipment, you may choose to leave the PO as is and wait to receive the items. If the item has been disputed based on a price change, you (if POCR is enabled) may change the price.

Changes made to the PO may send that document back through financial and/or sourcing approval reviews following your organizations workflow configuration. Once



approved, all of the PO changes will result in the transmission of an updated PO to the supplier, which will again be confirmed or disputed by the supplier.

Outside of POCR actions, Requesters could choose to create a new PO with alternative items or services.

GOODS **R**ECEIPT

A *Goods Receipt* is a document that is issued to acknowledge the receipt of items received from external vendors.

CREATE A GOODS RECEIPT

After catalog products or products & services are delivered to you, verify the completeness of your order and create a *Goods Receipt*. This section describes how to create a *Goods Receipt* when all products and mixed requests are delivered as expected, without issue.

From the *Homepage*, click 'Receipts' from your Requester panel. Your view will default to the 'Ready to Receive' tab listing all POs awaiting the completion of a goods receipt. Any POs that do require a goods receipt will not be listed in this tab. Please see your administrator for specific information of the Goods receipt requirements for your organization.

1. Locate the *PO Number* you would like to receive. Next to it, click the truck icon. Once selected, the *Create Goods Receipt* view will open.

| * | | | | Rec: Ready Tr | | | | |
|-------------------|------------|------------------|------------------|-------------------|----------|-------------------|---------------------------------|---------|
| | | | Ready to Receive | In Progress | Received | Returned | | |
| Type at least 2 c | | hase order | | | | | | |
| | P0 # | PO Creation Date | P0 Amount | Supplier | | Requ | est Requester Name | Actions |
| | 2000001248 | 06/16/2020 | \$363.35 | Office Depot | | Requester Trainir | g 1000001800 Requester Training | |
| 0 | 2000001228 | 04/23/2020 | \$1,488.99 | Office Supply Inc | | Requester Trainir | g 1000001746 Requester Training | 3 |
| | 2000001223 | 04/22/2020 | \$1,139.97 | Office Supply Inc | | Requester Trainir | g 1000001730 Requester Training | |
| -76 | 2000001214 | 04/14/2020 | \$10.00 | BF Goodrich | | Requester Trainir | g 1000001718 Requester Training | |

- 2. From the Goods Receipt draft, review the line item quantities and compare to what has been received. If all items have been received click 'Receive all'. (shown on next page)
- **3.** If some items have been received, enter the specific number of received items in the Quantity Received field. Once submitted, this action will create a parietal goods receipt and the PO will remain in the 'Ready to Receive tab



until all items have been received. POs in this status will be indicated with a pie icon as shown in the <u>next section.</u>

- 4. If the item(s) were received prior to receipt creation click into the 'Actual Del. Date' of the line item to select the appropriate date in the delivery calendar. Unless updated the delivery date will default to the date the receipt draft was originally created.
- **5.** Enter the *Bill of Lading* and/or *Packing Slip* information. If needed, add any *Comments* to the *Goods Receipt*. These fields are optional.

| kternal Receipt /A | Creation Date 06/16/2020 | Shipping Address Attention: Nicwhit Tester | | Suppl | er Depot | | | | Comments: | | |
|-------------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------|-----------------|----------------------------|-------------------|-----------|-----------------------|-----------------------------------|-----------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------------------|
| rrchase Request 100001800 | | Vroozi HQ 15000 VENTURA BLVD | | | Lading | | | | | | |
| ase Order 001248 | | SHERMAN OAKS, CA 91403-2443 US Nichole.Whitaker+OfficeRequeste | | - | Packing Slip 879083ABD1 | | | | | | |
| elpt Creator quester Training | | C +1 (818) 555-5555 | | | | | | | | | |
| e Item Overview | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Description | | | Qty Ordered | Qty Outstanding | 3 | Qty Received | UoM | Unit Price | Requested Del. Date | Actual Del. Date: | Total Price |
| Description Epson(R) DuraBrite(R) Ultra Standard C | apacity Color Multipack Ink Cartric | iges | Qty Ordered 5 | Qty Outstanding | 3 | Qty Received | UoM EA | Unit Price \$24.79 | Requested Del. Date 05/21/2020 | 4 Actual Del. Date: 06/21/2020 | |
| Epson(R) DuraBrite(R) Ultra Standard C | | | | | 3 | Oty Received 3 | | | | - | \$74 |
| | etter Size (8-1/2 x 11), 20 Lb, Rear | | 5 | 5 | 3 | 3 | EA | \$24.79 | 06/21/2020 | 06/21/2020 | Total Price \$74. \$0. \$0. |

6. Click 'Confirm Receipt'. Once completed, the Goods Receipt will be relocated to the 'Ready to Receive' tab within 'Receipt Status.



CREATE A GOODS RECEIPT FOR PARTIAL DELIVERY (1/2)

As outlined in the previous section, a partial receipt of goods can be completed. For many organizations it is a best practice to receive items as they come in rather than waiting until all have arrived, making the partial receipt process a frequent occurrence.

To get started follow steps 1 and 2 outlined in the previous section. At Step **3** enter the specific quantities received. Once you have completed any packing slip information, added comments or updated actual date of delivery, complete the partial receipt by selecting 'Confirm Receipt.'

A pop up window will prompt confirmation that you would in fact like to submit the partial *Goods Receipt*. Click 'Yes, Create!'.



Note: If the non-received items will never be received due to discontinuation or reasons. Select 'Close PO for Receiving'. This will remove any further receipt requirements for items related to the particular PO.

The *Goods Receipt* document will be recorded in the *Received* status tab historical data. The dollar amount for this Goods receipt will only display the value of the received items.



The PO will also remain in the 'Ready to Receive' tab with a *Pie* icon next to the delivery truck icon. (shown below) This indicates that some but not all items have been received.



| | | | | | Rece Ready To | | | | |
|------|------------|----------------------|----------------------|-----------|------------------|----------|------------------------------|--------------------|---------|
| | | | Ready to Re | ceive | n Progress | Received | Returned | | |
| Туре | at least : | 2 characters to sear | ch by purchase order | | | | | | |
| | ♦ | P0 # | PO Creation Date | PO Amount | Supplier | | Request | Requester Name | Actions |
| 盡 | \$ | 2000001248 | 06/16/2020 | \$363.35 | Office Depot | R | equester Training 1000001800 | Requester Training | 3 |

CREATE A SUBSEQUENT PARTIAL GOODS RECEIPT (2/2)

After a partial *Goods Receipt* is executed, the document remains in the *Ready to Receive* status. When the remaining products are delivered, a *Subsequent Partial Goods Receipt* will need to be entered in the system. This may need to happen more than once until fulfillment.

Repeat all steps as defined in Part 1. Once all items are fulfilled the PO will completely move to the 'Received tab.'

SERVICE RECEIPTS WITH 1-CLICK CONFIRMATION

If enabled by your administrator any recipients of a Missing *Service* Receipt email notification can generate a '**Service Receipt'** with **'1 click'** directly from that email.

• The Service Receipt specification will appear at the top of the email. To take action recipients can simply click 'Confirm Invoice'. (image on next page)



GOODS RECEIPT CREATED FROM AN

(Only applicable for buying organizations using the Supplier Portal.)

Advanced Shipment Notices can be submitted through the Supplier portal by the supplier user who creates it against a Purchase Order.

Upon Shipment Notice submission, the PO Requester receives email notification of



the ASN containing details of the Purchase Order shipment.

PO Requester can create a Goods Receipt directly from Shipment Notices

CREATE A GOODS RETURN AGAINST AN 'INVOICED' PO

Vroozi supports the complexity of reinvoicing (rebilling) processes with your suppliers. If enabled at the administrative level, Requesters will have the ability to create a Goods Return for an item which has already been *'Invoiced'* in the system in order to initiate the re invoicing process. Previously the option to return items was removed from the Goods Receipt view once the associated PO was in 'Invoiced' status.

Workflow

When a PO is allowed to be reopened post invoicing by Requesters/Buyers the Goods Receipt status will either be, 'Confirmed', 'Shipped' or 'Ordered'. The change of status from 'Invoiced' back to one of these statuses opens the PO for returns and then if necessary receiving.When a Goods Return is

| Ord | Purchase Order Order Number 2000001296 ⊖ | | Order Name 2000001296 | | | Issued 10/05/2020 | | | |
|--------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------------|--------------|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------|--|--|
| 100 Sup Offi | Request Number 1000001883 Suppler Office Depot Vendor Id 89808770 | | Order Type Standard Payment Tern Net due on 1s Company Cod Vroozi Inc V | t day of the month | | Bayer Requester Training Attention Requester Training 10000 VH0 SteffMAM QAKS, CA 91 403 3443 US ■ Nichole Whitaker+OffcerRequester@vrsozi.com < 1018 5565555 | | | |
| Not | tes to Supplier 4 | | | | | | | | |
| \$ | Description | Category | Part No. | Delivery Date | Qty UoM | Unit Price | Total 🕐 Status | | |
| 1 2 | Realspace(R) Magellan 60W Pne HP Pavilion x360 15-dq1025od C | | 787781 8838931 | 10/10/2020 | 2 EA 2 EA | \$379.99 \$636.49 | \$759.98 Invoiced \$1,272.98 Invoiced | | |

created for the item(s), the PO and Goods Receipt statuses will change back to the status they retained prior to the Goods Return creation; '*Confirmed*', '*Shipped*' or 'Ordered'.

In the example on the next page, the PO and Goods Receipt status changed back to 'Confirmed' once the return was documented in the system.

| | der Number 00001295 🖨 | | Order Name 200000129 | | | lasued 10/05/2020 | | | | |
|----------------|---------------------------------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------|------------------------|-------------------------------|--|--|
| | quest Number | | Order Type Standard | | | Buyer Requester Training | | | | |
| Su | ipplier fice Depot | Payment Te | rms 1st day of the month | Atter Vroc 1500 | Requester Training Attention: Requester Training Vrozci HQ 15000 VENTURA BLVD | | | | | |
| | ndor Id 808770 | Company C Vroozi Inc | | US | SHERMAN OAKS, CA 91403-2443 | | | | | |
| | | | | C+1 | (818) 555-5555 | | | | | |
| | otes to Supplier | | | | | | | | | |
| N/. | | Category | Part No. | Delivery Date | Qty UoM | Unit Price | Total 📀 🚦 | t Status | | |
| N/. | A. | | Part No. 787781 | Delivery Date | Qty UoM 2 EA | Unit Price \$379.99 | Total () 3 \$759.98 | | | |
| N// | A | 56000200 | | | | | | Status | | |
| N// | A Description Realspace(R) Magellan 60W Pne | 56000200 | 787781 | 10/10/2020 | 2 EA 2 EA | \$379.99 | \$759.98 \$1,272.98 | Status Invoiced | | |
| N/. | A Description Realspace(R) Magellan 60W Pne | 56000200 | 787781 | 10/10/2020 | 2 EA 2 EA | \$379.99 \$636.49 | \$759.98 \$1,272.98 | Status Invoiced Ordered | | |
| No N/. # | A Description Realspace(R) Magellan 60W Pne | 56000200 | 787781 | 10/10/2020 | 2 EA 2 EA | \$379.99 \$636.49 Subtotal (USD) | \$759.98 \$1,272.98 | Inviced Ordered | | |



The change in PO status allows your Accounts Payable team to create an Invoice against the PO in the event the supplier sends an updated invoice per their return/exchange process.

When or if the returned/replaced, PO items are again received, the Requester/Buyer has the ability to again confirm receipt of goods for the items in 'Ordered' status. As

shown on the previous page, the PO view will again display the options to 'Create Receipt' or 'Close for Receiving'. Requesters should select 'Close for receiving' if the items returned post invoice will never be replaced by the supplier.

| # | Description | Category | Part No. | Delivery Date | Qty UoM | Unit Price | Total 💿 Status | 0 |
|---|--------------------------------|----------|----------|---------------|---------|----------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------|
| 1 | Realspace(R) Magellan 60W Pne | 56000200 | 787781 | 10/10/2020 | 2 EA | \$379.99 | \$759.98 Invoiced | |
| 2 | HP Pavilion x360 15-dq1025od C | 48100000 | 8838931 | 10/10/2020 | 2 EA | \$636.49 | \$1,272.98 Ordered | - |
| | | | | | | Subtotal (USD) Shipping Charges (USD) Tax (USD) Total (USD) | S2.032.96 Close for Scotving Charles for Charles for Scotving Charles for Charles for | Creste Receipt |

GOODS **R**ETURN

If you need to return a product that was delivered for any reason, you must first create a *Goods Receipt* for those items. Only after the products have been received, can a return be documented in *Vroozi Purchase*. Any return documentation recorded in Vroozi does not trigger communication to the supplier. With this in mind, you should reach out to the supplier directly following any supplier or organization specific processes for initiating the return.

The steps for documenting a Good Return are as follows:

| | | | Rece | | | | | |
|-----------------------------------------|------------------|------------------|-------------|----------|----------|----------|------------|---------|
| | | Ready to Receive | In Progress | Received | Returned | | | |
| Type at least 2 characters to search by | y purchase order | | | | | | | |
| Receipt # | PO # | Received Date | Supplier | | | Amount | Request | Actions |
| 300000075 | 2000000435 | 08/20/2019 | Grainge | | | \$80.15 | 100000981 | • • |
| 300000072 | 2000000418 | 08/19/2019 | Grainge | | | \$240.45 | 1000001004 | C |

1. From the

'Receipts' category, select the 'Received' tab. This is the repository of all POs with completely or partially received items.

- 2. Access the completed goods receipt in the 'Received' tab.
- **3.** Find the applicable Goods Receipt or PO number. In the right column click the action arrow. (shown below)



4. This will generate the Goods Receipt Return draft. There are 2 required fields on this draft.

| N/A Gooi | d Receipt | | Creation Date 09/23/2019 | Shipping Address Attention: Nicwhit Tester Vroozi HQ 15000 VENTURA BLVD | | Supplier Grainger RMA Number | | | Comments: | | |
|-------------|---------------------------------------------------------|-------------|-----------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----|------------------------------------|---------------|-------------|------------|--|---|
| Purch | 100000060 urchase Order 000000403 stum Creator | | | SHERMAN OAKS, CA 91403-244 US Nichole. Whitaker+OfficeRequ | | Packing Slip | | | | | |
| Requ | uester Training | | | | | | | | | | |
| Line | Item Overview | Qty Ordered | Qty Receive | d Qty Returned | UoM | Unit Price | Delivery Date | Total Price | Reason | | - |
| 1 | LITTLE GIANT Pump, | 5 | 5 | 0 | EA | \$355.75 | 05/17/2019 | \$0.00 | | | |
| 2 | APPLETON ELECTRIC | 3 | 3 | 0 | EA | \$12.42 | 05/17/2019 | \$0.00 | | | |
| 3 | INTERMATIC Time; 2 | 4 | 4 | 0 | EA | \$80.15 | 05/17/2019 | \$0.00 | | | |
| | Return All | | | | | | | | | | - |
| | | | | | | | | | tal Amount | | |

• 'Quantity Returned' and 'Reason for Return'. (shown below)

- 5. The RMA or Packing Slip information, and comments fields are optional.
- 6. Complete the Return form by selecting 'Confirm Goods Returned'.
 - A pop up will ask you to reconfirm the return of goods. Select 'Yes Create'. (shown below)

| Goods Receipt Retu | Im 3500000010 | | | D |
|--------------------------------------|-----------------------------|----------------------------------------|---------------------|-----------|
| External Return N/A | Creation Date 09/23/2019 | Shipping Addre Attention: Nic | | Comments: |
| Good Receipt 3000000060 | | Vroozi HQ 15000 VENTU SHERMAN 04 | Are you sure? | |
| Purchase Order 2000000403 | | US | Cancel Yes, create! | |
| Return Creator Requester Training | | 📞 +1 (818) 55 | | |

Success! You have completed the documentation of your goods return. The goods return document may be accessed under the 'Returned' tab with it's own unique number. The new status of this document will be 'Confirmed'.

| oods Receipt R | eturn 3500000010 | | | | | | | | (| Confirme |
|-----------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------|--------------------|----------|------------|---------------|-------------|------------------------|----------|
| External Return N/A Soods Receipt 3000000060 | Creation Date 09/23/2019 Posting Date 10/09/2019 | Shipping Address ATTN: Nicwhit Tester Vraozi HQ 15000 VENTURA BLVD SHERMAN OAKS, CA 91 | 403-2443 | Sup Grai RMA | | | | Comments: | | |
| urchase Order 1000000403 | | US P. +1 (818) 555-5555 | 4052445 | Pac | ing Slip | | | | | |
| ietum Creator lequester Training .ine Item Overview | | | | | | | | | | |
| # Description | | Qty Ordered | Qty Received | Qty Returned | UoM | Unit Price | Delivery Date | Total Price | Reason | |
| | agnetic Drive | 5 | 5 | 5 | EA | 355.75 | 05/17/2019 | \$1,778.75 | 103 - No Longer Needed | |

A return can also be viewed in the Related Documents section of the <u>navigation bar</u> found in the related PO, Goods Receipt or Invoice.



PURCHASE ORDER CHANGE REQUEST (POCR)

The POCR functionality allows a range of modifications to be made to a Purchase Order. Change order permissions are based on global settings designated by your organization's Administrators, identify which changes or combinations of changes can be made.

See <u>POCR Guide</u> in the Vroozi HelpDesk for specific details.

INVOICES

Based on the workflows defined by your organization's administrators you may be asked to resolve exceptions related to a PO created based on a Requisition you submitted. This will require immediate action by you.

NOTIFICATION

When an exception occurs that requires your attention you will be notified **2** ways.

- **SPENDTECH®** Invoice 900000967 issued on 06/10/2020 has the following exception(s) None of the items have been received. (PO#: 200000681, Item: Apple MacBook) **AP Processor** Notes Dorothy Downton please complete receipt ap manager7@vroozi.com Supplier Payment Terms Apple Net 15 06/25/2020 1 \$1,149.00 DUE DATE ITEMS TOTAL VIEW INVOICE
- You will receive an email notification. Like other Vroozi emails, the notification will include the PO details and type of action required. Click 'View Invoice' to navigate directly to the invoice in Vroozi Purchase. (shown on previous page)
- **2.** A badge indicating the number of invoices awaiting your response will appear next to the 'Resolve Invoices' category in your navigation panel.





An exception indicates one or both of the following:

- 1. The PO is missing a Goods Receipt
- **2.** There is a discrepancy between the PO submitted by your organization to the supplier and the Supplier Invoice.

SUBMIT A RESOLUTION

1. Open 'Invoices' and select the Invoice number to view the Exception message(s) and take action.

| | | | Resolve Invoices ake action on invoices awaiting your resolution | | | | |
|----------------------|-----------------------------|----------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------|---------|----------|---|
| Search by Invoice #, | er Invoice # and Supplier I | Name | | | | | |
| Invoice # | P0 # 💭 | Supplier Invoice # 😄 | Supplier | Payment Due 🚔 | Total 🌐 | Assignee | 0 |
| 900000025 | 200000003 | Sta-Inv001 | Staples Advantage | 12/05/2018 0 | \$8.54 | 0 | |
| 900000156 | 200000034 | 123 | B & H PHOTO - VIDEO, INC. | 04/11/2019 0 | \$12.71 | 0 | |

2. Click 'Assign to me'.

| - Back to search | 1 of 2 | |
|---------------------------------------------|--------|--------------------------------------------------|
| Sender Ouroszigned user Ourosz2019 11:53 AM | | Assignee Unassigned Requester/Buyer Assign to me |
| Invoice 900000025 | | Overdue Exception |

- **3.** View Exception Handling Messages
- **4.** Select the Green Exception Actions

In the example below, the first exception requires the Requester to Create a Goods Receipt. The process will be the same as for any other PO.





5. Resolve Exception will require you to select a resolution. Check the box for the desired action and include a message (optional)

| Line Item Price Exception - Li | O Subtotal (Payable) = \$8.54 [Difference (\$4.44) exceeds Tolerance (\$ ne Item #2 ce = \$2.05 [Difference (\$4.44) exceeds Tolerance (\$0.00)] | \$0.00)] | | | Resolve Exception(s) |
|--------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------|------|--------------------------|----------------------|
| | How should the AP department handle this exception(s)?* Pay the Purchase Order Pay the Invoice Don't Pay and Delete the Invoice | Cancel | Save | Message to AP department | |

- 6. Once you select an action the save button will become enabled.
- 7. 'Submit Resolution' to return back to the AP Processor



CLOSED PO AFTER A FINAL INVOICE

A Final Invoice indicates that some but not all of the items contained in the referenced PO will be invoiced. This could be the case in the event that a supplier is short on their ability to fulfill an order, an item is returned before an invoice is created, etc.

Based on the status of the Goods Receipt at the time this happens, you may be required to take action. In this event email communication will walk you through what to do.

Final Invoice on a PO without a complete Goods Receipt

In this event, a buying organizations AP team closes the PO for receiving by creating a Final Invoice *and* a Goods Receipt has not yet been completed against the PO, the PO will automatically close for receiving, a Goods Receipt will not be required and the status of the PO will change to 'Invoiced'.



Final Invoice on a PO with a completed Goods Receipt

In the event a Receipt is completed/confirmed for the full amount before the AP Processor determines that the invoice is *Final*, the Requester/Buyer will receive an email with instructions on how to proceed. (below)

| 7 7 5 ORDERED QUANTITY RECEIVED QUANTITY INVOICED QUANTITY Please execute the following actions to close the PO for invoicing: 1. Return all items in this PO that have been received but not invoiced. 2. Close the PO for receiving. The PO will then auto-transition to 'Invoiced' status | System ur | nable to close Purch 2000001282 | ase Order |
|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------|
| Please execute the following actions to close the PO for invoicing: 1. Return all items in this PO that have been received but not invoiced. | 7 | 7 | 5 |
| 1. Return all items in this PO that have been received but not invoiced. | ORDERED QUANTITY | RECEIVED QUANTITY | INVOICED QUANTITY |
| f you're having difficulties closing this PO or if you have questions, please contact /roozi Support. | 1. Return all items in this f 2. Close the PO for receiv f you're having difficulties clo | PO that have been received bui ing. The PO will then auto-trans | t not invoiced. sition to 'Invoiced' status. |



DOCUMENT FLOW

The *Document Flow* function allows requesters to view details of their transactions by document type. *Related Document* type. It also can display a diagram of where the *Request* is in the purchasing process lifecycle.

- 1. From the *Homepage*, click 'Document Flow' on the blue navigation bar. The *Document Type* drop down menu defaults to *All*. It is optional to update the type to further narrow the search results.
- 2. Select 'Search'.
- **3.** The *Related Documents* will appear and display the current Status.



- **4.** Click the *Eye* icon in order to view *Document Detail* information. (details not pictured)
- **5.** Click 'Document Flow' to see every *Related Document* and how they are interconnected. See the example below.

| 1 PURCHASE REQUES | TS | 1 PURCHASE ORDERS | 3 RECEIPTS | 1 RETURNS | 0 INVIDICES | 0 PAYMENTS |
|----------------------|-------------------------------|----------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------|----------------|---------------|
| PURCHASE REQUE | STS | | | | | |
| | | | Innuary Office Depot 100 Image: Office Depo Image: Office Depo | 222.48 | | |
| PURCHASE ORDER | RS | | | | | |
| | | | 2000000190 Office Depo 📜 2 01/19/2017 💽 5 | 222.48 | | |
| RECEIPTS | | | | | | |
| | 00000114 N/A 01/19/2017 | ₩ 2 \$153.20 | 2000000115 N/A 〒 1 01/19/2017 | | | IEW |
| RETURNS | | | | | | |
| | | | 3000000115 ▲ N/A 1 前 01/19/2017 | | | |



CENTRAL RECEIVERS

Central Receivers can confirm receipt of goods or services, return Goods and resolve invoices for any Purchase Order on behalf of anyone in the organization.

As a Requester with the Central Receiver role, Select Admin View in the navigation panel to open the Central Receiver functions. (see below)

Here you can search for the *PO Number* and create *Goods Receipts* or returns as described in the corresponding *Goods Receipt* and *Ordered Goods Return* sections. Depending on your organization, the *Central Receiver* role may or may not be available.



View of a Requester and Central Receiver dual role.

When logging in as a central receiver without any combined roles, you are immediately directed to the *Goods Receipts* page. Please see the <u>Goods Receipt</u> portion of this guide for further instruction.



| RC Receiver ~ | | | | | VRO | | | |
|--------------------|-----------|------------------------|-------------------------|------------|------------------------------|--------------------------|------------------|--------|
| | | | | | Receipts Ready To Receive | e | | |
| Shipment Notices | | | Ready to Receive | In Proc | | Received Return | ed | |
| ① Resolve Invoices | | | | | | | | |
| | Type at I | east 2 characters to s | earch by purchase order | | | | | |
| | | P0 # | PO Creation Date | PO Amount | Supplier | Request | Requester Name | Action |
| | -76 | 200000413 | 05/16/2019 | \$105.00 | Husnain Mustafa | Mustafa - Certification | Husnain Mustafa | |
| | -76 | 2000000411 | 05/15/2019 | \$1,803.00 | Dell | Jason Prince 100000098 | Jason Prince | |
| | -76 | 200000409 | 05/15/2019 | \$32.00 | US Test | Jason Prince 100000098 | 7 Jason Prince | |
| | | 200000408 | 05/15/2019 | \$2.00 | Pizza Hut CXML | Notify Vroozi 100000982 | 2 Notify Vroozi | |
| | -76 | 200000406 | 05/10/2019 | \$503.97 | Grainger | Tom Requester 100000098 | 30 Tom Requester | |
| | | 200000401 | 05/02/2019 | \$111.00 | MarketSmiths | Notify Vroozi 100000962 | 2 Notify Vroozi | |
| | -76 | 200000400 | 05/02/2019 | \$332.00 | 1st Choice | Abdullah Iqbal 100000096 | 9 Abdullah Iqbal | |
| | -76 | 200000399 | 05/02/2019 | \$111.00 | MarketSmiths | Notify Vroozi 100000962 | 2 Notify Vroozi | |
| | | 200000398 | 05/02/2019 | \$111.00 | MarketSmiths | Notify Vroozi 100000962 | 2 Notify Vroozi | |
| | | 200000397 | 05/02/2019 | \$664.00 | 1st Choice | Abdullah Iqbal 100000096 | 4 Abdullah Iqbal | |
| | | | | | | | First 1 2 3 4 | 5 Las |